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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

PROFILE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Muhammad Salman Husain Chawala

Chairman (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Salman has over 23 years of experience for working in various sector including 

pharmaceutical, agriculture, chemical, engineering, and finance. He played an instrumental role at 

senior management level in business development, corporate governance, corporate affairs, and 

general management. Currently, he is associated with NIT and is also representing the 

organization on a member of Board. Salman holds a master’s degree in Business Administration 

from IBA – Karachi and also an Associate Member of Institute of Corporate Secretaries of 

Pakistan. 

Mr. Razak H. M. Bengali

Managing Director / CEO (Executive Director)

Mr. Razak Haji Mohammed Bengali belongs to an industrialist family which has been in business

since 1947. After graduating in First Class First Position in commerce from Karachi, he joined

Siemens and proceeded to Germany where he received business education in German language

and passed the examination of Industrial Businessmen (equivalent to MBA).

After coming back from Germany, he remained associated with his family business for about 30

years. At present, he is the Chief Executive of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (an engineering unit

producing automotive steel wheel rims), which position he has been holding since July, 1998.

He has been the Chairman of Filament Yarn Manufacturers Association, and Vice President of the

Employers Federation of Pakistan.

Also, he has been the President and Vice President of Pakistan German Business Forum (PGBF)

for a long number of years. He made this institution active and vibrant which has the recognition

and support of various Government organizations and the business people in Pakistan and in

Germany.

He holds the membership of the following social bodies:

1. Member and Past President of Karachi Gymkhana

2. Member of Karachi Boat Club

3. Member of Rotary Club of Karachi Continental

4. Member of Defence Authority Country & Golf Club

Also, he has participated in various international seminars, and has widely traveled around the

globe. Besides English and Urdu, he is well-versed in German language.
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PROFILE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri

Director Marketing / Business Development (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri is a Graduate from Sindh University. After graduation, he

proceeded to Saudi Arabia and started his business of trading, imports and distribution of food

items from 1982 and captured a larger market share in this field in Saudi Arabia.

He came back to Pakistan and set up a food processing industry with the name of Zaiqa Food

Industries in the year 1995. The unit is engaged in processing of spices and other foods items and

in exports of the same to the gulf countries, the Middle East, the UK, the USA and the Canada.

In the year 1998, he took over with the association of his friends the management of Baluchistan

Wheels Limited, and since then he is involved in managing and running the company with

dedication and hard-work. He is a man of wisdom and possesses business acumen.

He has been the member of Managing Committee of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of

Commerce & Industry. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan Association of Automotive

Parts & Accessories Manufacturers (PAAPAM) and played an active role for the growth of

Vending Industry as well as for the Auto Industry in the Country.

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani

Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani joined Baluchistan Wheels Ltd as Chief Operating Officer (C.O.O) in

the year 1996 and took the responsibility of planning and production. He has been instrumental in

the balancing modernization and expansion of various Plant facilities at BWL. He has over 30

years of experience in the field of manufacturing, marketing & administration. He has been

associated with various business groups. He is certified Director and had successfully completed

Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi

Independent Director

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi is an Non Executive Director and he is a Chartered Accountant and a

fellow of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and Pakistan. He

carries a vast experience of teaching, management of large scale industries, investment and

financing. He has been associated with National Investment Trust (NIT) and has served on the

Board of various companies as a nominee Director of NIT. He has attended various seminars and

lectures in the process of continuing professional development and have been associated with

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) Committee for Technical Services and also

served as a member of Quality Assurance Board of ICAP.

He is a Certified Director and had completed Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

Mr. Muhammad Javed

Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Javed is a Mechanical Engineer and life time member of Pakistan Engineering

Council. He had foreign training in Japan and visits to China, Taiwan, Malaysia, Netherlands,

Turkey and India for technical agreement, selection /testing and development of plant machinery

and equipment.

He has over 40 years’ experience of managing engineering and automobile wheel industry. He

retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015 after serving 31years at various positions,

Head of Technical Division and Director on Board and executed projects of Plant Expansion

&Modernization.

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi

Independent Director

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi has over 30 years of versatile experience in the fields of

Investment-Banking, Feasibility Studies of projects and its implementation by raising equity &

debt, Leasing, Finance and Corporate affairs and Manufacturing. He had been associated with

Baluchistan Wheels Ltd (BWL) for over 15 years in various capacities as company secretary,

Head of Finance & Director on the Board. He retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015

and is very well versed with the Auto Vending and Assembly Industry. He is a Commerce

Graduate and an MBA besides he is also a member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Managers.

Mr. Sajid Nadri

Independent Director

Mr. Sajid Nadri by profession is an a mechanical engineer and is associated with the Automobile 

Industry and Auto Parts Manufacturing since last 42 year, he has done scores of technical and 

management courses and has obtained training inland and from abroad. He has gained extensive 

experience in manufacturing engineering and has the specialization and core expertise of sheet 

metal tools and dies, jigs and fixtures manufacturing and general engineering.

Mr Nadri was associated with BWL for the last 21 years and has in-depth knowledge & experience 

of wheels manufacturing and has played an significant role in growth of BWL.

Mrs. Saba Nadeem

Female Director / Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Saba Nadeem belongs to a business family. She has done A 'Levels. Also, she has done

Diploma in Interior Designing from the Indus Valley School of Arts, and remained involved in

activities like Fabric Painting and Glass Painting. She has been a teacher in a grammar school in

Clifton, Karachi.

She is a Certified Director and had completed Director Education Certification Program from the

Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

She has developed a special interest in being involved in business and commerce and, therefore,

she has chosen to be on the Board of Directors of Baluchistan Wheels Limited.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali

Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri

Director Marketing / Business Development

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani

Chief Operating Officer

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Yunus Ladha
Chief Financial Officer / Sr. General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Ladha is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Pakistan (ICAP) & a fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of

Pakistan (ICMAP). Besides this he is also fellow member of Chartered Secretaries, Certified

Internal Control Auditor (USA) and CPA (UK).

He is also a member of the Economic Advisory & Government Relationship Committee of the

ICAP. He has over thirty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation &

Corporate Affairs.

He has worked in various multinational / public listed companies. He is associated with the

Company since 1996. Presently, he is CFO / Senior General Manager (Finance).

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak

General Manager (Finance) / Deputy CFO

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak has done his EMBA from Karachi School of Business

Leadership (KSBL), he is also MBA (Finance) and MCS. He is associated with the

company since year 2000 and currently working as General Manager Finance / Deputy

CFO.

He has vast experience in the field of Accounts & Finance, Treasury, Banking Matters  

& Corporate Affairs. 
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Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani

Deputy General Manager (Supply & Services)

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani completed his BSc (Hons) Accounting from University of Hull,

England and MSc Banking and International Finance from Cass Business School,

London, England.

He has previously worked at Standard Chartered and NIB Bank. Mr. Kumail is a

progressive minded individual who joined us in 2014. Currently he is working as Head

of Supply & Services Department.

Mr. Atif Iqbal

Chief Internal Auditor

Mr. Atif Iqbal has done his MBA in Finance. He is associated with the Company since

2004 and currently working as Chief Internal Auditor / Senior Manager. He has over

eighteen years of experience in the field of Audit, Finance, Taxation, Treasury &

Banking Matters and Corporate Affairs.

Syed Pervez Akhtar

General Manager (H.R / I.R)

Syed Pervez Akhtar has done his MBA in Human Resource Management and is also

a Law Graduate.

He carries working experience of 25 years in the areas of Human Resource

Management and Industrial Relations in reputed organizations such as Kohinoor

Chemical Co. (Tibet Group), S.G. Fiber Limited and Pak Hy-Oils Limited.

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed

Company Secretary / Deputy General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

(ICAP). He has over twenty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation,

Internal Audit & Corporate Affairs. He has worked in various public listed companies. At present,

he is working as Company Secretary / Deputy General Manage (Finance).

He is associated with the company since 2007. In addition he has attended various seminars

/courses / conferences on Finance / Taxation / Audit / Corporate & Financial Reporting /Budget

etc.
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' %

Turnover - net 2,305,239 100 2,174,481 100 1,675,857 100 2,778,192 100 1,574,822 100 912,820 100

Cost of Sales (1,738,118) (75.40) (1,705,948) (78.45) (1,349,925) (80.55) (2,166,540) (77.98) (1,331,759) (84.57) (795,406) (87.14)

Gorss Profit 567,121 24.60 468,533 21.55 325,932 19.45 611,652 22.02 243,063 15.43 117,414 12.86 

Administration expenses (156,012) (6.77) (155,263) (7.14) (120,601) (7.20) (116,612) (4.20) (91,246) (5.79) (82,148) (9.00)

Selling and distribution expenses (67,616) (2.93) (84,313) (3.88) (57,325) (3.42) (66,798) (2.40) (51,477) (3.27) (35,424) (3.88)

Other expenses (44,038) (1.91) (25,963) (1.19) (41,796) (2.49) (51,406) (1.85) (10,496) (0.67) (1,784) (0.20)

Other Income 159,515 6.92 152,652 7.02 101,101 6.03 52,514 1.89 55,940 3.55 27,990 3.07 

(108,151) (112,887) (118,621) (182,302) (97,279) (91,366)

Operating Profit 458,970 19.91 355,646 16.36 207,311 12.37 429,350 15.45 145,784 9.26 26,048 2.85 

Finance Cost (2,579) (0.11) (5,554) (0.26) (5,559) (0.33) (3,976) (0.14) (4,216) (0.27) (2,353) (0.26)

Profit before Taxation 456,391 19.80 350,092 16.10 201,752 12.04 425,374 15.31 141,568 8.99 23,695 2.60 

Taxation (140,809) (6.11) (109,427) (5.03) (65,346) (3.90) (217,136) (7.82) (40,882) (2.60) (4,775) (0.52)

Profit after Taxation 315,582 13.69 240,665 11.07 136,406 8.14 208,238 7.50 100,686 6.39 18,920 2.07 

Earnings per Share-(Rupees) 23.67 18.05 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITS
DISTRIBUTION
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF 

BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN 

ACHIEVING THE COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES: 

 

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (BWL) has performed their 

duties diligently in upholding the best interest of  all shareholders’ of the Company and has managed 

the affairs of the Company in an effective and efficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers 

and has performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies 

Ordinance 1984), the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019(the 

Code) and the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the Rule Book) where the Company is 

listed.  

 

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2025 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the 

Company and achieving its objectives in the following manner; 

 

 The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive, independent  

and female directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code and that 

members of the Board and its respective committees have adequate skill, experience and 

knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company; 

 

 The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration 

Committee and has approved their respective terms of references and has assigned adequate 

resources so that the committees perform their responsibilities diligently;  

 

 The Board has developed and put in place the rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation 

of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors. The findings of 

the annual evaluation are assessed andre-evaluated by HR & R Committee and the Board 

periodically;  

 

 The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable 

them to perform their duties in an effective manner and that the four directors of the 

Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the 

Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program. 

The Company arranged an orientation for the New Members at the BWL plant on the 

Election Date  

 

 The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its Committees were held 

with the requisite quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and  

 

 that the minutes of all the meetings (including committees) are appropriately recorded and 

maintained;  
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 The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and 

corporate values adhered through the Company and has developed significant policies for 

smooth functioning; 

 

 All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its 

committees to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision-making process; 

 

 All the related party transactions executed by the Company were approved by the Board on 

the recommendation of the Audit Committee;  

 

 The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular 

assessment through self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities;  

 

 The Board has prepared and approved the director’s report and has ensured that the 

directors’ report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the 

Company and the content of the directors’ report are in accordance with the requirement of 

applicable laws and regulations;  

 

 The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Executive and 

other key executives including Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of 

Internal Audit;  

 

 The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely 

manner and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings; and  

 

 The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in 

accordance with the relevant laws and regulation applicable on the Company and the Board 

has always prioritized the Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation in terms of 

their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision making.  

 

The evaluation of the Board’s performance is assessed based on those key areas where the Board 

requires clarity in order to provide high level oversight, including the strategic process; key business 

drivers and performing mile stones, the global economic environment and competitive context in 

which the Company operates; the risk faced by the Company’s business; Board dynamics; capability 

and information flows.  

 

Based on the aforementioned, it can reasonably be stated that the Board of BWL has played a key 

role in ensuring that the Company objectives are not only achieved, but also exceeded expectations 

through a joint effort with the management team and guidance and oversight by the Board and its 

members. 

 

 

Muhammad Salman Husain Chawala 

Chairman  

September 08, 2025 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements and 

Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

 

BUSINESS REVIEW 

 

Pakistan’s auto industry posted a strong rebound in Financial Year 2025 with substantial growth across 

most segments, signaling revival in demand amid improved macro-economic conditions.  The only 

exception was the tractor segment which recorded a sharp decline, due to continued stress in the 

agricultural economy.  Passenger car sales rose by 43% to 148,023 from 103,829 units a year earlier.  

Trucks and buses sales increased more than double, jumping 98% to 5,232 units compared to 2,644 

units in Financial Year 2024 mainly due to axle load implementation. However, tractor sales plunged 

by36% to 29,192 units in Financial Year 2025 compared to 45,911 units in Financial Year 2024, 

reflecting subdued farm income and week rural demand. 

 

The YoY growth was supported by a stable macro-economic environment, lower interest rates, easing 

inflation, a stronger rupee and improving consumer confidence. 

 

During the fiscal year July, 2024 to June, 2025, the Car wheels sales was Rs 1,152.458 million  as 

compared to Rs.796.451 million (increased by 45%). Likewise, the Truck/Bus wheels sales went up 

from Rs 212.062 million to Rs 500.591 million (increased by 136%). Contrary to this, the sale of 

Tractor wheels weakened and declined from Rs 1,072.854 million to 556.470 million (decreased by 

48%). Additionally, the scrap sale went up by 3% to Rs 95.720 million from Rs 93.115 million. The 

cost of sales increased to Rs 1,734.946 million from Rs 1,705.948 million. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

This year, the Company has earned highest-ever profits of its history.  The Company’s financial 

performance showed impressive improvement with a 21% increase in gross profits, reaching Rs 

567.121 million compared to Rs 468.533 million in the previous year.  Moreover, the Company’s net 

profits increased by 31% to Rs 315.582 million, up from Rs 240.665 million in the previous year. 

 

The increase in Gross Profit and Net Profit is mainly due to surge in the production and sale of car 

wheels and truck/bus wheels segments. The increase is due to uplift in the overall automobile sales due 

to (i) stable exchange rates (ii) declining interest rates (iii) increasing remittances (iv) lower inflation 

(v) attractive auto financing schemes by banks and (vi) improving macroeconomic environment. 

However, the production and sale of tractor wheels witnessed drop due to depressed tractors sales.  The 

substantial rise in other income is primarily from profit on investment of surplus funds in the 

government treasury bills, capital gain on listed securities/shares and reversal of prior year liabilities no 

longer payable. 
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The comparative financial results for the year 2025 as against the year 2024 are as follows: 

 

 2025 2024 

 (Rs. in ‘000) 

Turnover-net 2,305,239 2,174,481 

Gross Profit 567,121 468,533 

Profit before Taxation 456,391 350,092 

Profit after Taxation 315,582 240,665 

Earnings per Share (Rs.) 23.67 18.05 

   

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 

Based on the net profit for the current year, the earnings per share is Rs. 23.67(2024: Rs. 18.05) 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board of Directors have approved final cash dividend of Rs.7 per share(70%) for the year ended June 

30, 2025 amounting Rs.93.34 million. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs.6 per share 

(60%) amounting Rs.80.01 million already declared and paid to the shareholders thus making a total of 

Rs.13 per share cash dividend (130%)amounting Rs.173.35 million for the year 2025.(2024: Rs.13.00 per 

share (130%) amounting Rs.173.35million). 

 

HUMAN RESOURCE & WELFARE SCHEMES 

 

At our company, we recognize that our officers, staff, and workforce are the foundation of our success. 

We are committed to fostering a culture of excellence by empowering our talented and dedicated 

employees. To this end, we regularly provide opportunities for professional growth and development 

through training programs. Our human resource policies are designed to attract, recruit, develop, and 

retain top-tier talent, ensuring that our team members possess the skills and expertise necessary to drive 

our business forward. By investing in our people, we aim to maintain a high-performing workforce that is 

equipped to meet the challenges of an ever-evolving industry. 

 

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT 

 

We prioritize the health and safety of our employees and are proactively managing risks associated with 

our manufacturing process. Our goal is to minimize the likelihood of accidents and injuries To ensure a 

safe working environment, we provide all plant employees with essential safety appliances and 

equipment,  

 

Our company is committed to providing comprehensive medical facilities and other necessary amenities 

to support the health and well-being of our employees. In addition to these medical facilities, we 

encourage healthy lifestyle activities, including sports, with dedicated cricket and football teams at the 

factory. We also organize an annual picnic for both officers and workers.  

 

At BWL, we recognize the importance of environmental protection and take proactive measures to 

preserve nature and maintain a clean environment at our workplaces. Our factory is surrounded by a lush 

green environment, with trees and grass planted throughout the premises, creating a serene and natural 

ambiance. We strictly avoid the use of hazardous substances and ensure that all products and materials 

procured, as well as those manufactured, are completely free from harmful materials. 
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We are committed to environmental stewardship and adhere to all relevant laws, regulations, and 

standards. We adopt industry best practices and ensure that our employees, contractors, suppliers, and 

customers receive comprehensive training and awareness programs on environmental systems, 

procedures, and shared responsibilities. Regular reviews and audits of our environmental performance 

enable us to set targets for continuous improvement, driving our commitment to minimizing our 

ecological footprint and promoting a sustainable future. 

 

Our company has earned the esteemed ISO-14001 certification, a globally recognized benchmark for 

environmental excellence. This certification serves as a testament to our organization's role as a 

responsible steward of the environment, driving positive change and promoting a greener future. 

 

ENERGY CONSERVATION 

 

We are implementing robust measures to optimize energy conservation across our operations, focusing 

on reducing consumption of electricity, gas, and fuels. A comprehensive plan has been developed and 

executed to minimize energy waste, and our production schedules are strategically planned to ensure 

only essential plants operate during peak electricity hours. By taking a proactive approach to energy 

management, we aim to reduce our carbon footprint, lower energy costs, and contribute to a more 

sustainable future. Our energy-efficient practices are designed to strike a balance between meeting our 

operational needs while minimizing our impact on the environment. 

 

UPGRADATION OF PLANT & PROCESS 

 

To ensure our wheels meet international standards and exceed customer expectations, we prioritize the 

continuous upgrading and maintenance of our plant, machinery, and processes. This proactive approach 

enables us to achieve optimal performance, prolong the lifespan of our equipment, and maintain a high 

level of product quality. By investing in modern technology and regular maintenance, we guarantee our 

machinery and equipment operate at peak efficiency, resulting in a longer workable life and reduced 

downtime. This commitment to excellence ensures we consistently deliver high-quality products that 

meet our customers' precise specifications and quality requirements. 

 

To stay at the forefront of technological advancements and ensure our equipment remains cutting-edge, 

we regularly collaborate with foreign technical experts and maintain ongoing relationships with our 

plant and machinery suppliers. This partnership enables us to tap into their expertise, gain valuable 

insights, and implement improvements that drive efficiency and productivity. 

 

This year, we inducted new machines and undertook asignificant refurbishment on the following 

machines: 

 

i. Complete refurbishment/overhauling of power utilities like transformers, L.T/H.T Switch 

gear systems & power factor units for supplying power to plant &machineries was carried 

out successfully  this year and the system is running satisfactorily now. 

 

ii. The new CNC laser cutting machine was inducted during the current financial year for 

making truck/bus discs and is running successfully now.  

 

iii. Installed CO2 gas vaporizer at CO2 gas tank current year for smooth and proper flow of 

CO2 gas to welding machines which required CO2 gas.  
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RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY CONTROL 

 

Our Research and Development (R&D) Department is dedicated to driving innovation and excellence 

in product development, ensuring customer satisfaction and adherence to international standards. Over 

the years, our R&D capabilities have expanded significantly, empowering our Design Office to 

leverage cutting-edge technologies. 

 

Our R&D Department boasts a state-of-the-art Tool & Die manufacturing shop, fully equipped with 

both conventional and CNC machines. This in-house facility enables us to design and manufacture a 

comprehensive range of tools and dies. 

 

This self-sufficiency ensures we can meet our production requirements efficiently, while also 

supporting the repair and manufacture of machinery spares. By maintaining control over our tooling 

production, we can guarantee precision, quality, and timely delivery, ultimately enhancing our overall 

manufacturing capabilities and productivity. 

 

Our R&D Department is staffed by a highly skilled and experienced team, dedicated to the repair and 

maintenance of production tooling.Our Quality Control Department is fully equipped with state-of-the-

art testing equipment, tools, and instruments that meet international standards, enabling us to 

meticulously control processes and monitor wheel quality. By combining cutting-edge technology with 

human expertise, we guarantee that our products meet and exceed customer quality requirements, 

reinforcing our commitment to delivering exceptional quality wheels. 

 

COMPANY’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY 

 

Our company, as a vital import substitution unit, makes a significant contribution to the national 

economy by saving precious foreign exchange reserves. In the year under review, we achieved a 

substantial saving of approximately $8.124 million (2024: $ 7.750 million) in foreign exchange reserves 

through our supply of wheels to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs), thereby reducing reliance 

on imports and supporting the country's balance of payments. 

 

Furthermore, we are committed to contributing to the national exchequer, having paid a substantial 

amount of taxes, including income tax, sales tax, and other indirect taxes, totaling approximately Rs. 

568 million (2024: Rs.527 million).This demonstrates our dedication to supporting the government's 

revenue generation efforts. 

 

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 

 

The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good corporate 

management practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. The Board and management are 

cognizant of their responsibilities and monitor the Company’s operations and performance to enhance 

the accuracy, comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-financial information. 

 

In Compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd the 

Board Members / Directors are pleased to place the following statements on record: 

 

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, 

the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
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Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company. 

 

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements 

and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

 

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the 

preparation of financial statements. 

 

The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.   

 

There are no significant doubts in the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA 

 

The Key operating and financial data for last six years is given in this report. 

 

GOVERNMENT TAXES 

 

Outstanding Taxes were Rs.21.491 million (2024: Rs.18.922 million) as disclosed in the Financial 

Statements.  

 

INVESTMENT OF EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUNDS 

 

The following were the value of investments held by employee’s retirement benefits fund at the year end: 

 

 June 24(Audited) 

Executive Provident Fund Rs. 171.694million 

Non-Executive Provident Fund Rs.   72.579 million 

 

 

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

 

The new Board of Directors was constituted as a result of election of directors held on May 17, 2025 and 

accordingly its committees were reconstituted. The new Board comprises Nine (9) directors which include 

four (4) independent directors, two (2) non-executive directors and three (3) executive directors. The 

independent directors had been chosen from the data bank maintained by the Pakistan Institute of 

Corporate Governance (PICG) in terms of Section 166 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017. Furthermore, the 

independent directors met the justification and selection criteria, as per the requirement of Section 166 (3) 

of the Companies Act, 2017, and they have been elected in the same manner as other directors in terms of 

section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

 

In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG), the Company encourages 

representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.  

 

The current composition of the Board is as follows:  

 

Total number of Directors: 

Total Number of Directors: are 9 including: 

Male         : 8 

Female     : 1 

 

Composition of the Board: 

Independent Directors:4 

Non-executive Directors:2 

Executive Directors: 3 

 

The Board is responsible for making decisions with respect to important management matters, including 

the execution of important business activities and other matters as prescribed by law. These decisions are 

made after deliberating such matters according to the established criteria, assessing risks and giving such 

matters due consideration. The Board is also responsible for supervising and monitoring the conduct of 

duties. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS 

 

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director was as 

follows: 

 

 

Sr.No. Name of Director 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Mr. AnisWahab Zuberi 5 

2 Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali 5 

3 Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri 5 

4 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 4 

5 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 4 

6 Mr. Aamir Amin 3 

7 Mr. Muhammad Javed 5 

8 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 5 

9 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4 

10 Mr.Muhammad Salman Husain Chawala 1 

11 Mr.Sajid Nadri 1 

 

(Joined on May 17, 2025 )

(Joined on Apr 10, 2025 )

(Resign on Feb 24, 2025 )

(Retired on May, 17 2025 )
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AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:  

 

Sr.No. Name of Director 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 4 

2 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 4 

3 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4 

4 Mr. Aamir Amin 3 

5 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 3 

 

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

During the year a meeting of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) was held. Attendance by 

each Director was as follows: 

 

Sr No. Name of Director 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 

1 Mr. Muhammad Javed 1 

2 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani - 

3 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 1 

4 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 1 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 

Directors’ Fees are paid in line with the approval of the Board. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

During the year, the Board has undertaken a formal process of evaluation of its performance. The overall 

performance of the Board measured on the defined parameters for the year was satisfactory. 

 

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING 

 

The Board ensured the compliance of the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance in respect of Directors’ 

training program of the Board Members. The Company stands complied with the requirement of the Board 

Directors Training Program (DTP) certified as prescribed under sub clause 1 of regulation No. 19 of the Listed 

Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. Currently,four directors of the Company have 

certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the Company have the exemption from the 

requirements of the Directors’ Training Program. The remaining directors shall obtain certification under the DTP 

in due course of time 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

 

There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance and 

the company has fully complied with requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this report.  

 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

 

The total number of Company’s shareholders was 1,778 as at June 30, 2025 as against 1,369 as on June 

30, 2024. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 and its disclosure is included in this annual 

report. 

 

The highest and lowest market prices of the Company’s shares during 2024-2025 were as follows:  

 

Highest  January 20, 2025  PKR 160.00 

Lowest  September 27,2024  PKR 100.00 

 

 

TRADING IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY BY DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

 

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the directors, executives and their spouses and minor children 

have traded in the shares of the Company. Mr. Razzak H.M Bengali (CEO) purchased 10,000 shares, 

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani (Director) purchased 10,000 shares and Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 

(Director) sold 500 shares.   

 

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT 

 

The Mean gender pay gap and Median gender pay gap for the year ended June 30,2025 is 22% and 20% 

respectively. 

 

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS 

 

The present Auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible 

offered themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-appointment 

for the year ending June 30, 2026. The Directors endorse recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

 

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES 

 

The Board regularly reviews the company’s strategic direction.  Annual plans and performance targets 

for business are set and are reviewed by the Board in the light of the company’s overall objectives.  The 

Board is committed to maintain highest standards of good corporate governance.  As a leading wheel 

manufacturer, reputation for high ethical standards is critical to business success. Treatment of 

stakeholders with respect, courtesy and competence, ensuring clear conscientiousness in all decisions 

and operations and on this basis code of business principles has been developed and acknowledged by 

each Director and employee of the company. 
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NBP AND RELATED MATTERS 

 

NBP suit for recovery against the Company (BWL) and Privatization Commission (PC) for payment 

amounting to Rs. 91.25 million it had paid to PC, which the Company does not acknowledge as briefly 

explained at Note No. 27.1 in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

 

Our Legal Advisor had concluded the evidence stage, in the suit filed by the Company before the 

Honorable High Court of Sindh at Karachi, against NBP for redemption of charge on Assets and the 

suit was listed for final arguments for 07.03.2025 in the High Court.  But as a result of the passage of 

Sindh Civil Court Amendment Act, 2025 on 27.02.2025, all Civil Suits (including this Suit) were 

transferred to the District Court. Our suit has now been assigned to the Senior Civil Judge No: 6, 

District Court (South) and the case has been fixed for final arguments on 22-09-2025, which will now 

proceed by our Legal Advisor in the District Court. 

.  

The Privatization Commission (PC) had filed an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court (SC) against 

the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed the appeal of the PC on the grounds of 

limitation. In order to defend this case, the management of the Company hadfiled a caveat in the 

Honorable SC through its lawyer the hearing of which is pending. 

 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

 

Looking ahead, it is expected that positive sales growth momentum in the auto sector may continue in 

the Financial Year, 2026, driven by lower borrowing costs, introduction of new car variants and revival 

of domestic demand amid falling interest rates. However, recent devastating floods in Pakistan may 

severely damage the agricultural crops and livestock, destroy agricultural infrastructure and reduce the 

overall agricultural output, which may effect sales of tractors, which in turn may result in low offtake of 

our tractors wheels. 

 

The management is conscious of the challenges that lie ahead and is continuously evolving strategies 

and adopting measures to met these challenges with a view to maintain business growth. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

We would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to our valued customers and 

stakeholders for placing their trust and confidence in our company. We also extend our sincere 

appreciation to the entire BWL team, including our dedicated staff and workers, for their tireless efforts 

and contributions to our success. We recognize that our achievements would not have been possible 

without their hard work, commitment, and loyalty. As we move forward, we look forward to their 

continued support and collaboration, which will be instrumental in driving our future growth and 

success.May Allah's blessings be upon us, guiding us towards achieving success and prosperity for our 

company, and may this success benefit all stakeholders and the country as a whole. May our endeavors 

be fruitful and contribute to the greater good. Aameen! 

 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

 

 

RAZAK H.M. BENGALI               MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 

Chief Executive                 Director   

     

Karachi: September 08, 2025 
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019(CCG) 

 

Name of Company: BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2025 

 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

 

1. The total number of directors are 9 as per the following: 

a.  Male:  8 

b. Female: 1 

 

2. The composition of Board is as follows: 

 

Category Names 
  

Independent Directors Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 
 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 

Mr. Muhammad Javed 

 Mr. Sajid Nadri 
  

Non-Executive Director (Male) Mr. Muhammad Salman Husain Chawala 
(Chairman) 

 
Non-Executive Director (Female) Mrs. Saba Nadeem 

 

Executive Directors Mr. Razak H.M Bengali(CEO) 
 Mr.Muhammad Siddique Misri 
 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 
  

 

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 

companies, including this company; 
 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 

takento disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 
 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

policiesof the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant 

policies along with their datesof approval or updating in maintained by the Company; 
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 

takenby the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 

Regulations; 

 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 

Regulationswith respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board; 

 

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors 

inaccordance with the Act and these Regulations; 
 

9. Out of the nine, six Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program or are 

exempted from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program as per the Listed Companies (Code of 

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. However, during the year, No Directors’ Training Program 

was arranged; 
 

10. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 

Internal Audit. 
 

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 

approval of the Board; 

 

12. The Board has formed the following Committees that are required under the Code. The 

Committees comprise ofmembers as given below:  
 

a) Audit Committee  

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi        Chairman (Independent Director) 
Mr. Muhammad Salman Husain Chawala 

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 
       Member(Non-executive Director) 
       Member (Independent Director) 

Mrs. Saba Nadeem        Member (Non-executive Director) 
  

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

Mr. Muhammad Javed        Chairman (Independent Director) 
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani        Member (Executive Director) 
Mr. Sajid Nadri        Member (Independent Director) 
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 

advised tothe committees for compliance.  

 

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 
 

 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit is 

considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversantwith the 

policies and procedures of the Company.   
 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a 

satisfactory ratingunder the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board ofPakistan, that 

they and all their partners are in compliance with InternationalFederation of Accountants 

(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners 

of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent dependent and non-

dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of 

Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company; 
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 

provide otherservices except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 

regulatory requirement andthe auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 

guidelines in this regard; 
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of 
theRegulations have beencomplied with. 
 

 

 

MUHAMMAD SALMAN HUSAIN CHAWALA 

Chairman  

September 08, 2025 

Meetings Frequency 

Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the 

financial year ended June 30, 2025. 

  

HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting was held during the financial year 

ended June 30, 2025. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED 
ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019  

 
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Baluchistan Wheels Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements 

of regulation 36 of the Regulations.  
 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status 
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited 
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 

Company to comply with the Regulations.  
 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 

approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.  
 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 

Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.  
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the 
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material 

respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2025. 
 
KARACHI   

 
DATED: September 12, 2025                    CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
                   Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer 
UDIN: CR2025100678iQWnVNA1 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED (the Company), 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, the statement of profit or loss, 

the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in 

equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material 

accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the 

information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 

purposes of the audit. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the 

statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part 

thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 

respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the 

profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then 

ended. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 

Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 

(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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S. No Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 

1. Contingencies  

 As disclosed in note 27 to the annexed 

financial statements,the Company has 

contingent liabilities in respect of legal and 

tax matters, which are pending adjudication 

at different levels with the court and other 

legal forums. 

 

Contingencies require management to make 

judgments and estimates in relation to the 

interpretation of laws, statutory rules, 

regulations and the probability of outcome 

and financial impact, if any, on the Company 

for disclosure and recognition and 

measurement of any provision that may be 

required against such contingencies.  

 

Due to significance of amounts involved, 

inherent uncertainties with respect to the 

outcome of matters and use of significant 

management judgments and estimates to 

assess the same including related financial 

impacts, we considered contingent liabilities 

a key audit matter. 

We performed number of procedures to 

verify the nature of contingencies and their 

implications on the financial statements. 

These included, among others: 

 

 We followed up the progress of each 

case along with Company’s estimate of 

the cost to be incurred; 

 

 We have reviewed the key elements of 

the methodology employed by 

management in challenging 

reasonableness of the cost estimates 

including any impact on future case 

costs from changes arising in the 

regulatory environment; 

 

 We obtained confirmations from legal 

and tax advisors for current status on 

pending cases and any new case filed 

during the year; and 

 

 Checked orders by relevant authority 

on previous lawsuits / cases appearing 

in the financial statements. 

2. Valuation of Stock-in-trade 

 At June 30, 2025, the Company held stock-

in-trade amounting to Rs.650.793 million, 

constituting 24.43% of the total assets, as 

disclosed in note 11 to the financial 

statements.  

 

As described in note 5.5to the financial 

statements, stock-in-trade is measured at 

lower of cost and net realizable value. The 

cost of work-in-process and finished goods 

is determined at an average manufacturing 

cost including a proportion of production 

overheads. 

 

There is an element of judgement involved 

Our key audit procedures in respect of 

valuation of stock-in-trade included: 

 

 Obtained an understanding of the 

Company’s process with respect to 

valuation of stock-in-trade and tested 

controls relevant to such process; 

 

 Tested the calculations of per unit cost 

of work in process and finished goods 

and assess the appropriateness of 

management’s basis for the allocation 

of cost and production overheads and 

compared it with prior period to assess 

reasonableness; 

Following are the key audit matters: 
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 At June 30, 2025, the Company held stock-

in-trade amounting to Rs.650.793 million, 

constituting 24.43% of the total assets, as 

disclosed in note 11 to the financial 

statements.  

 

As described in note 5.5to the financial 

statements, stock-in-trade is measured at 

lower of cost and net realizable value. The 

cost of work-in-process and finished goods 

is determined at an average manufacturing 

cost including a proportion of production 

overheads. 

 

There is an element of judgement involved 

in determining an appropriate costing basis 

and assessing the amount of provision for 

slow- moving and obsolete stock-in-trade. 

 

Given the level of judgements and 

estimates involved, we have identified 

valuation of stock-in-trade as a key audit 

matter. 

 

 

Our key audit procedures in respect of 

valuation of stock-in-trade included: 

 

 Obtained an understanding of the 

Company’s process with respect to 

valuation of stock-in-trade and tested 

controls relevant to such process; 

 

 Tested the calculations of per unit cost 

of work in process and finished goods 

and assess the appropriateness of 

management’s basis for the allocation 

of cost and production overheads and 

compared it with prior period to assess 

reasonableness; 

 

 Evaluated the appropriateness of the 

basis for identification of slow moving 

and obsolete stock-in-trade and the 

accuracy of provision for slow moving 

and obsolete stock-in-trade assessed by 

the management, on test basis. We 

tested the accuracy of ageing analysis 

of stock-in-trade, on a sample basis; 

and 

 

 Tested the net realizable value and 

valuation methods in accordance with 

applicable financial reporting 

standards. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
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going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 

not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 

2017); 

 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive 

income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes 

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in 

agreement with the books of account and returns; 

 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 

of the Company’s business; and 

 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 

the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer. 

 

KARACHI 

 

DATED: September 11, 2025       BDO EBRAHIM & CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

UDIN:AR202510067UE45qa3hb 
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

Note

Turnover - net 28 2,305,239        2,174,481        

Cost of sales 29 (1,738,118)      (1,705,948)      

Gross profit 567,121           468,533           

Administrative expenses 30 (156,012)         (155,263)         

Selling and distribution expenses 31 (67,616)           (84,313)           

Other expenses 32 (44,038)           (25,963)           

Other income 33 159,515           152,652           

Operating profit 458,970           355,646           

Finance cost 34 (2,579)             (5,554)             

Profit before taxation and levy 456,391           350,092           

Levy -                  -                  

Profit before taxation 456,391           350,092           

Taxation 35 (140,809)         (109,427)         

Profit for the year 315,582           240,665           

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  (Rupees per share) 36 23.67               18.05               

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

Note

Profit for the year 315,582           240,665           

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and 

Settlement of defined benefit plan liability -                  229                  

Deferred tax 24.1 -                  -                  

-                  229                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 315,582           240,894           

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                  DIRECTOR

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 38 203,651        402,582        

Finance cost paid (2,579)           (5,755)           

Income tax paid (152,186)       (133,188)       

Employees' benefit paid -                (10,754)         

Leave encashment paid (2,130)           (82)                

Long-term loans and advances - net (4,013)           3,493            

Long-term deposits 2,995            2,939            

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 45,738          259,235        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property plant and equipment (43,953)         (13,068)         

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 6,050            4,846            

Profit received on saving accounts and treasury bills 102,172        147,190        

Short-term investment -net (506)              (181,685)       

Dividend received 2,715            -                

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 66,478          (42,717)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease rentals paid (10,618)         (23,765)         

Dividend paid on ordinary shares (118,798)       (178,510)       

Net cash used in financing activities (129,416)       (202,275)       

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (17,200)         14,243          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33,015          18,772          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 15,815          33,015          

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Use of estimates and judgements:

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.

Baluchistan Wheels Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on June 16, 1980 under Companies Act,

1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of

automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars and mini commercial vehicles. The Company

is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The registered office of the Company is located at the 1st Floor, State Life Building No. 3, Dr.

Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The manufacturing facility (plant) of the Company is

situated at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of :

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS

Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been

followed.

-Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of 

Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires

management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
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` January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

4.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2027

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee

subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the

classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of

liabilities as current or non-current

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,

beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and

interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have

significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional  disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance

arrangements

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current

liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments

regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments

January 01, 2026

Effective date 

(annual periods

beginning on or 

after)

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding

nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power

purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments

regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as

power purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' -

Lack of Exchangeability
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5 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

Subsequent costs (except freehold land) are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognised as a

separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the

day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in statement of profit or loss

during the financial year in which they are incurred.

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated

otherwise.

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,

except for freehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Historical cost includes expenditure that

is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item including borrowing costs and exchange

differences recognised, for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment up to the commencement

of commercial production. The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct

labor and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its

intended use.

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption

of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by

IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective

from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective

from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.
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b) Capital work-in-progress

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The assets' residual values, depreciation method and useful lives of each part of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit

exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that

generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment losses are

recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an

asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognised, the

depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount

over its estimated useful life.

Capital work-in-progress (including stores held for capital expenditures) are stated at cost and

consists of expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating

fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable

borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when assets

are available for use intended by the management.

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets'

recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on operating fixed assets other than land is provided on a reducing balance method,

except for computers which are depreciated on straight line method. Depreciation is charged on

addition from the day the asset is available for use and is continued to be depreciated until it is

derecognised. Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 6, are determined to allocate the

cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not insignificant, over its useful life.

Freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at revalued amount, which

is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated impairment, if any.

Disposal of assets is recognised when significant risks and rewards incidental to the ownership have

been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds

with the carrying amounts and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

5.3 Leases

a) Right of use assets

b) Lease liability

The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease liability

adjusted for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct cost incurred

less any lease incentives received. 

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversal

of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment losses had

been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The lease liability is measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future lease

payments over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently

lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the rate, if

there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual

value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,

extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if the

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of

recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of

operating fixed assets. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by the impairment

losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability.

Right of use asset pertaining to head office is depreciated over the lease term of 3 years using

straight line method and vehicles over the useful life at the rate of 20% using reducing balance

method.



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

a)

b) Deferred

c)

5.8 Levy

Deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted up to

the reporting date and are expected to apply to the periods when the differences reverse. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 

assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or

on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or

their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Current income tax

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of minimum and final taxes is

not based on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for

Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

(ICAP), these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 and accordingly is classified as levy.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of

the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the

amounts used for taxation purposes.

The Company takes into account decisions taken by the taxation authorities. For instance where the

Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage, the disputed

amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and

deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available in future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax

credits.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance

with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using tax

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking into account tax credits and

tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to

provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such

years.
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5.9 Government Grant

5.10 Borrowings

5.11 Trade and other payables

The Government Grant is measured upon initial recognition as the difference between fair value of

the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of the loan is the present value of the loan proceed

received, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument.

Subsequently, the grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the recognition of

interest expenses the grant is compensating.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are

subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received (net of

transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the

Company and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Exchange gains and losses arising on

transaction in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the

respective liabilities.

Borrowing costs on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the

acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs

are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred. Borrowing

cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that

they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23 "Borrowing cost".

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in

the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities

if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are shown as interest and markup is accrued

to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.
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5.12 Provisions 

5.13 Contingencies

5.14 Financial instruments

5.14.1 Financial assets

Amortised cost

(i)

(ii)

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will

be required to settle the obligation and amount of that obligation can be measured reliably.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting

date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past

events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the

amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or

loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortised cost. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not

designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

In line with the Company’s policy, a general provision equivalent to 0.2% of the last six months’

revenue is recognised to cover potential obligations.
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Impairment

5.14.2 Financial liabilities

5.14.3 Recognition and measurement 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the financial assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the

Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion

thereof. 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently

measured at fair value and amortised cost, as the case may be. The particular measurement methods

adopted  are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. 

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost incurred is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are

recognised in statement of profit or loss.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) equity investment, or fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business

model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortised cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a

financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortised cost

are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.
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5.14.4 Derecognition

5.15 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.16 Foreign currency translation

5.17 Employees benefits

5.17.1 Staff retirement benefits

a) Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)

5.17.2 Compensated absences

The Company's employees benefits comprise of provident fund, compensated absences and medical

benefits for eligible employees.

Accrual for compensated absences is made to the extent of the value of accrued absences of the

eligible employees cadre at the reporting date using their current salary levels as per Company's

policy. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the management considers

that the financial impact is not material.

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all permanent

employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal contributions are

made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary for

executives and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-executives.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial

statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts

and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that

comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished

i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency (i.e. 'Rupees') at the rates

of exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign

currencies are translated into functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting

date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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5.17.3 Medical benefits

5.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Others

-

-

-

-

-

5.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Scrap sales are recognised on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

Sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred control of the products to the

customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

products. 

The Company maintains a health insurance policy for its entitled employees and their respective

spouses. The Company contributes premium to the policy annually. Such premium is recognised as

an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the period to which it relates.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as

described below:

Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle outstanding

and the applicable rate of return.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances.

If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is

recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the

Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue

from the sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods passes to customers and the

customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods. Contract

assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a

customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

All other revenues are accounted when performance obligations are met.

Profit on savings accounts is recognised on effective interest rate method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive such payment is established.
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5.20 Earnings per share

5.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5.21 Related party transactions

5.22 Segment reporting

Transactions with related parties are based at agreed rates at normal commercial rates on the same

terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of

the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which

it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions

with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one reportable segment i.e.

manufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars and mini

commercial vehicles.

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared and approved by the

Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Appropriations of profit are reflected in the

statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.
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6.4

These valuations fall under level 2 hierarchies which have been explained in note 6.4.2.

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3 Non financial asset fair valuation

6.5 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Details of the latest revaluation exercises carried out by the external valuers based on which revaluation

surplus has been recorded in these financial statements are as follows:

Revaluation 

date

Name of 

external valuer

Carrying values 

as at June 30, 

2025

--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

Written 

down 

value 

Fairwater 

Property 

Valuers & 

Surveyors 

(Private) 

Limited

Leasehold land June 30, 2022 2,559     581,634               

Revalued amount 

as at revaluation 

date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

581,634               

The fair market value and the forced sales value of the revalued land is Rs. 581.634 million and

465.307 million respectively.

Valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of leasehold land and the significant

unobservable inputs used in the valuation are as follows:

The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurements are as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available for

distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date

(unobservable inputs).
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Freehold land

2025 2024

Note

7 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

This comprises of:

Plant and machinery 7.1 16,814            -                   

7.1

Opening balance -                   3,585               

Additions (at cost) 16,814            -                   

Transferred to operating fixed assets -                   (3,585)             

Closing balance 16,814            -                   

8 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured

Employees 2,096               -                   

Executives 8.1 & 8.2 6,494               3,701               

8,590               3,701               

Current maturity 13 (2,288)             (1,057)             

6,302               2,644               

Advances - secured

Employees 40,794            38,534            

Executives 28,881            2,681               

69,675            41,215            

Current maturity 13 (67,704)           (39,599)           

1,971               1,616               

8,273               4,260               

8.1

8.2

This represents loans given to executives as per employment terms. These are recoverable in equal

monthly installments over a period of five years. These loans are secured against the retirement benefits

of employees and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

(Rupees in thousands)

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives and employees at the end of any month during

the year was Rs. 16.051 million (2024: Rs. 11.971 million).

The fair value of freehold land was determined by obtaining market values of the properties and

considering its size, nature and location, as well as the trend in the real estate and property sector. All

relevant factors affecting the saleability of the asset, availability of the buyers and the assessment of its

real value under prevailing economic conditions were accounted for. The fair value of the land was

assessed based on information available in current real estate market and has been categorized as level

2. The estimated fair value of land would increase / decrease in line with the selling prices for property

of same nature in the immediate neighbourhood and adjoining areas.

Movement of carrying amount of plant and machinery
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2025 2024

Note

9 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Unsecured - considered good

Trade deposits                4,014                4,014 

Lease deposits                       -                  1,400 

               4,014                5,414 

10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 9,178               9,327               

Spare parts 88,109            83,756            

Loose tools 1,972               1,931               

99,259            95,014            

10.1 (62,121)           (62,390)           

37,138            32,625            

10.1 Provision for slow-moving stores and spares

Opening balance 62,390            62,844            

Reversal during the year 33 (269)                (454)                

Closing balance 62,121            62,390            

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials 243,287          109,467          

Work-in-process 217,429          251,733          

Finished goods 142,638          112,060          

Scrap stock 18,653            4,386               

622,007          477,646          

Stock in transit 33,271            85,491            

655,278          563,137          

Provision for slow-moving stock-in-trade 11.1 (4,485)             (7,388)             

650,793          555,749          

11.1 Provision for slow-moving and obsolete stock-in-trade

Opening balance 7,388               11,676            

Reversal during the year 33 (2,903)             (4,288)             

Closing balance 4,485               7,388               

12 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - considered good 12.1 223,644          212,528          

Less: Provision for doubtful debts -                   -                   

           223,644            212,528 

(Rupees in thousands)

Provision for slow-moving stores and spares
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2025 2024

Note

12.1 AGE ANALYSIS OF TRADE DEBTS

Not past due                       -                         -   

Past due 0- 30 days            177,794            168,958 

Past due 31-90 days              45,850              43,570 

223,644                     212,528 

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current maturity of long-term loans and 

Advances 8                2,288 1,057               

Current maturity of long-term 8 67,704            39,599            

Advance for expenses 13.1 1,178               1,015               

31,830            20,302            

100,712          60,916            

103,000          61,973            

13.1

14 DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits

Trade deposits 400                  -                   

Lease deposits 14.1 1,400               -                   

1,800               -                   

Prepayments 445                  410                  

2,245               410                  

14.1

15 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Markup on treasury bills 9,062               6,614               

Insurance claim 64                    174                  

9,126               6,788               

(Rupees in thousands)

Advance to suppliers

This includes advances provided to employees to meet business expenses. These advances are interest

free.

This represents current portion of lease deposit.
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2025 2024

Note

16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss:

Listed equity securities 16.1 33,786              -                   

33,786              -                   

At amortised cost

Treasury bills 663,309            696,589           

697,095            696,589           

16.1 Listed equity securities

Investment in equity securities of listed companies are as follows:

Millat Tractors Limited 33,786              -                   

33,786              -                   

17 TAXATION - NET

Advance income tax 133,263            92,267             

Provision for taxation (143,901)           (111,189)         

(10,638)             (18,922)           

18

Current accounts 12,929              14,845             

Saving accounts 18.1 2,886                 18,170             

15,815              33,015             

18.1

19 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Fully paid in cash 92,760                92,760              

40,583                40,583              

133,343              133,343            

2024

These carry profits at the rates ranging from 9.25% to 19% (2024: 19.8% to 22.8%) per annum.

13,334,250     

9,276,000       

4,058,250       

13,334,250     

Issued as fully paid bonus shares

2025

9,276,000       

2024

4,058,250       

(Rupees in thousands)

BANK BALANCES - (Local Currency)

Number of shares Company name

2024

-              

2025

60,476          

2025

Number of ordinary

shares of Rs. 10/- each 2025 2024

(Rupees in thousands)
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19.1

2025 2024

Note

20 RESERVES

Revenue reserves

General reserve 160,000            160,000           

Un-appropriated profit 1,440,005         1,244,432       

1,600,005         1,404,432       

21 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

This represents revaluation surplus relating to freehold land (notes 6.4 and 6.5).

Balance as the beginning of the year              579,075            579,075 

Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of 

incremental depreciation charged / disposals 

during the year, net of deferred tax                         -                         -   

Related deferred tax liability

Revaluation surplus arising during the year                         -                         -   

                        -                         -   

             579,075            579,075 

22 LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 5,298                 13,912             

Current portion (5,298)               (8,731)             

22.1 -                     5,181               

22.1 Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:

(Rupees in thousands)

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The holders of

shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual

assets.

Vehicles Head office premises Total Vehicles Head office premises Total

(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)

Opening balance 9,325                                                                             4,587                                                                             13,912                                                                           27,694                                                                           6,271                                                                             33,965                                                                           

Addition -                                                                                -                                                                                1,962                                                                             1,962                                                                             

Adjustment 456                                                                                -                                                                                456                                                                                (1,904)                                                                           269                                                                                (1,635)                                                                           

Accretion of interest 1,141                                                                             406                                                                                1,547                                                                             4,371                                                                             1,079                                                                             5,450                                                                             

1,597                                                                             406                                                                                2,003                                                                             2,467                                                                             3,310                                                                             5,777                                                                             

Payments (5,624)                                                                           (4,994)                                                                           (10,618)                                                                         (20,836)                                                                         (4,994)                                                                           (25,830)                                                                         

Closing balance 5,298                                                                             -                                                                                5,298                                                                             9,325                                                                             4,587                                                                             13,912                                                                           

Current maturity (5,298)                                                                           -                                                                                (5,298)                                                                           (4,144)                                                                           (4,587)                                                                           (8,731)                                                                           

-                                                                                -                                                                                -                                                                                5,181                                                                             -                                                                                5,181                                                                             

2025 2024

Vehicles
Head office 

premises
Total Vehicles

Head office 

premises
Total

(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)

Opening balance 9,325                4,587                13,912              27,694              6,271                33,965              

Addition -                    -                    1,962                1,962                

Adjustment 456                    -                    456                    (1,904)               269                    (1,635)               

Accretion of interest 1,141                406                    1,547                4,371                1,079                5,450                

1,597                406                    2,003                2,467                3,310                5,777                

Payments (5,624)               (4,994)               (10,618)             (20,836)             (4,994)               (25,830)             

Closing balance 5,298                -                    5,298                9,325                4,587                13,912              

Current maturity (5,298)               -                    (5,298)               (4,144)               (4,587)               (8,731)               

-                    -                    -                    5,181                -                    5,181                

2025 2024
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Vehicles
Head office 

premises
Total Vehicles

Head office 

premises
Total

(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)

Opening balance 9,325                 4,587                 13,912               27,694               6,271                 33,965               

Addition -                     -                     1,962                 1,962                 

Adjustment 456                    -                     456                    (1,904)                269                    (1,635)                

Accretion of interest 1,141                 406                    1,547                 4,371                 1,079                 5,450                 

1,597                 406                    2,003                 2,467                 3,310                 5,777                 

Payments (5,624)                (4,994)                (10,618)              (20,836)              (4,994)                (25,830)              

Closing balance 5,298                 -                     5,298                 9,325                 4,587                 13,912               

Current maturity (5,298)                -                     (5,298)                (4,144)                (4,587)                (8,731)                

-                     -                     -                     5,181                 -                     5,181                 

2025 2024

Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow
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On August 06, 2001, the Company filed a suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh at 

Karachi, against NBP for redemption of charge on assets which was given in anticipation of a 

prospective loan/finance to be provided by NBP to the Company.  As the proposed loan/finance 

had not been obtained from NBP by the Company, the charge should have been redeemed by 

NBP. Our legal advisor had concluded that the evidence stage has been concluded, and the suit 

was listed for final arguments for March 07, 2025  in the High Court.  But as a result of the 

passage of Sindh Civil Court Amendment Act, 2025 on February 27, 2025 , all Civil Suits 

(including our Suit # 1031/2001) were transferred to the District Court. The Suit # 1031/2001 has 

now been assigned to the Senior Civil Judge No 6, District Court (South) with suit # 1164/2025, 

and the case has been fixed for final arguments on September 02, 2025, which will now proceed 

by the legal advisor in the District Court. 

27.1.2

27.1.3 On March 13, 2023, the Privatization Commission (PC) filed an appeal in the Honorable

Supreme Court (SC) against the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed the

appeal of the PC on the grounds of limitation on February 09, 2023. In order to defend this case,

the management of the Company has filed a caveat in the Honorable Supreme Court through its

lawyer.

The management, based on the advice of the legal advisor, is of the view that no financial

implications will arise to the Company as a result of this suit and accordingly, no provision has

been made for the same in these financial statements.

There is no change in the status of this case during the year.
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27.1.4

27.1.5

27.1.6

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has not maintained / retained a provision

in respect of this contingency.

On September 27, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) amended the assessment

and issued an order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year

2017, reducing tax refunds for the said tax year by Rs. 28.39 million. Being aggrieved, the

Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) (CIRA), who

maintained the demand of DCIR through an appellate order dated January 15, 2019. The

Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending

adjudication.

The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has reversed a provision

amounting of Rs. 17.678 millions.

On January 25, 2018, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the

assessment and issued order under section 122 (5A) of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO) 2001, for

the tax year 2015, and created arbitrary tax demand of Rs. 35.356 million. Being aggrieved with

the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland

Revenue Appeals - I [CIR (A)] on which the concerned CIR (A) through its order under section

129 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001, deleted certain additions and remanded the back case to the

concerned ACIR on account of certain additions. A second appeal has been filed by the tax

department (FBR) with the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is

pending adjudication.

On March 15, 2021, the DCIR amended the assessment and issued an order under section

122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, demanding Rs. 417.996

million against which the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) who has passed an appellate

order under section 129(1) whereby set aside / delete the whole demand except for addition in

difference in stock between the income tax return and sales tax return amounting to Rs. 72.088

million against which the Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue

(ATIR). The ATIR vide its order dated November 23, 2023 annulled both the orders passed by

DCIR and CIR(A) in the agitated issue (i.e. addition in difference in stock) and allowed an

appeal. On November 28, 2022, the DCIR passed an order under section 122(4) to give effect

under section 124 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, whereby the learned

DCIR made addition in the income amounting to Rs. 19,204 million on account of purchase due

to non-deduction of tax under section 153(1)(a) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 against

which the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A). The CIR(A) vide his appellate order under

section 129 of the Income Tax Ordinance ,2001 dated May 30, 2024 remanded back the case to

the concerned DCIR on account of addition of Rs.19,204 million. The concerned DCIR, on the

basis of details and explanations submitted by the Company, drew no adverse inference in this

regard and allowed the expense and deleted the addition Rs.19.204 million and passed an appeal

effect order on June 20, 2024 with a nil demand under section 124 read with section 122(1)/(5)

of the Income Tax Ordnance, 2001.
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27.1.7

27.1.8 On November 24, 2023, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122

(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2020 and created tax demand of Rs

354,180/- on various issues. Being aggrieved by the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company

filed an appeal before CIR (A). The CIR (A) vide his appellate order under section 129 dated

January 31, 2024, deleted certain additions, confirmed certain additions and remanded back the

amended assessment order to the concerned ACIR on the issue of disallowance of credit of

withholding taxes deducted / paid with the direction to allow full credit of taxes deducted / paid

after due verification from the system or from third parties. Accordingly we submitted complete

breakup of taxes deducted / paid claimed by us alongwith income tax challans to the ACIR but

the concerned ACIR had not allowed full credit of taxes deducted / paid and issued notice of

demand under deduction 137 amounting Rs.14.003 million- as of appeal effect order under

section 124/129. The Company had already filed second appeal before the Honorable ATIR on

the issues confirmed by CIR (A) which is pending adjudication.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, retained a provision of Rs. 1.669 million

on prudent basis and reversed the excess previously recorded by Rs 4.533 million, as discussed

above.

The management based on the advice of the tax advisor, has made further provision of Rs.13.649

million on the basis of prudence. The total provision has now becomes Rs.14.003 million in

respect of above tax year.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has reversed a provision of Rs. 16.715

million from the financial statements that was kept in relation to the above case.

On May 31, 2023, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued an order under section 122 (5A)

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2019, and created tax demand of Rs. 6.203

million on various issues. Being aggrieved by the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company

filed an appeal before the CIR (A). The CIR (A), vide his appellate order dated January 01,

2024, under section 129, deleted certain additions, confirmed certain additions and remanded

back the issue of disallowance of credit of withholding taxes deducted/paid in the amended

assessment order to the concerned ACIR with the direction to allow full credit of taxes

deducted/paid after due verification from the system or from third parties. Accordingly the

Company submitted a complete breakup of taxes deducted / paid claimed by us along with

income tax challans to the ACIR but the concerned ACIR had not allowed full credit of taxes

deducted/paid and issued notice of demand under section 137 amounting Rs.1.669 million- as of

appeal effect order under section 124/129. The Company had already filed second appeal before

the Honorable ATIR on the issues confirmed by CIR (A) which is pending adjudication.
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27.1.9

27.1.10

2025 2024

Note

27.2 Commitments

Outstanding letters of guarantee                  5,776           4,512 

Outstanding letters of credit - raw material              202,856       249,754 

Outstanding letters of credit - Spares                  8,576           1,365 

28 TURNOVER - NET

Local sales 28.1 2,726,834         2,584,707  

  Sales return (5,637)               (15,948)      

  Sales tax (415,958)           (394,277)    

(421,595)           (410,225)    

2,305,239         2,174,481  

28.1 Local sales include scrap sales of Rs. 95.720 million (2024: Rs.93.115 million).

(Rupees in thousands)

The audit under section 177(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is under progress for the tax

year 2023. 

The management based on the advice of the tax advisor, has reversed a provision of Rs 1.6

million. The total provision has now becomes Rs.31.654 million.

On January 17, 2024, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued an order under Section 122

(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the Tax Year 2021 and created a tax demand of Rs

33.254 million on various issues. Being aggrieved by the order of the concerned ACIR, the

Company filed an appeal before CIR (A). The CIR (A) vide his appellate order dated April 05,

2024, under section 129, deleted certain additions, confirmed certain additions and remanded

back the amended assessment order to the concerned ACIR on the issue of disallowance of credit

of withholding taxes deducted / paid with the direction to allow full credit of taxes deducted/paid

after due verification from the system or from third parties. Accordingly we had submitted

complete breakup of taxes deducted /paid claimed by us alongwith income tax challans to the

ACIR but the concerned ACIR had not allowed full credit of taxes deducted/paid and issued

notice of demand under deduction 137 amounting Rs.31.651 million as of appeal effect order

under section 124/129. The Company had already filed second appeal before the Honorable

ATIR on the issues confirmed by CIR (A) which is pending adjudication.
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2025 2024

Note

29.1 Material consumed

Opening stock-in-trade

Raw material and components 109,467            192,743            

Scrap 4,386                2,374                

113,853            195,117            

Purchases made during the year 1,345,864         1,098,750         

1,459,717         1,293,867         

Closing stock-in-trade

Raw material and components (243,287)          (109,467)           

Scrap (18,653)            (4,386)               

(261,940)          (113,853)           

1,197,777         1,180,014         

(Rupees in thousands)
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29.2

Bonus 57,249              69,215              

Medical 6,813                5,448                

Gratuity fund -                    6,263                

Provident fund 4,750                3,804                

68,812              84,730              

30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 30.1 90,019              90,120              

Outsourced service expenses 11,339              9,176                

Vehicle running expenses 15,706              17,808              

Corporate expenses 5,235                4,822                

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 8,399                10,040              

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net -                    138                   

Entertainment 4,538                3,872                

Utilities 6,631                5,740                

Legal and professional charges 1,891                3,868                

Auditor's remuneration 30.2 1,599                2,136                

Insurance 1,864                1,504                

Telephone and postage 1,270                965                   

Staff transportation 1,100                1,052                

Repairs and maintenance 717                   616                   

General stores supplies 1,865                1,111                

Printing, stationery and periodicals 380                   368                   

Travelling and conveyance 2,063                902                   

Donation 72                     -                    

Others 1,324                1,025                

156,012            155,263            

30.1

Bonus 12,622              18,457              
Medical 3,190                1,869                
Gratuity fund -                    1,670                

Provident fund 3,439                2,917                

19,251              24,913              

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 19.251 million (2024: Rs. 24.913 million) in respect

of the following staff employment benefits.

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 68.812 million (2024: Rs. 84.730 million) in respect

of the following staff employment benefits.

2025 2024

Note (Rupees in thousands)
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30.2 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee 988                   918                   

Out of pocket expenses 151                   138                   

Half yearly review 240                   160                   

Special audit engagement -                    700                   

Other audit expense 220                   220                   

1,599                2,136                

31 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 31.1 23,055              24,697              

Outward freight 31,139              45,629              

Outsourced service expenses 3,726                2,936                

Entertainment 2,678                1,876                

Vehicle running expenses 2,146                2,349                

Utilities 1,248                1,049                

Insurance 375                   467                   

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 2,428                4,134                

Provision for warranty 251                   833                   

Others 570                   343                   

67,616              84,313              

31.1

2025 2024

Note

Bonus 2,393                4,614                

Medical 701                   284                   

Gratuity fund -                    418                   

Provident fund 1,051                909                   

4,145                6,225                

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 4.145 million (2024: Rs. 6.225 million) in respect of

the following staff employment benefits.

(Rupees in thousands)

Bonus 12,622              18,457              
Medical 3,190                1,869                
Gratuity fund -                    1,670                

Provident fund 3,439                2,917                

19,251              24,913              

2025 2024

Note (Rupees in thousands)
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2025 2024

Note (Rupees in thousands)

32 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25.2 25,021              18,814              

Workers' Welfare Fund 9,508                7,149                

7,806                -                    

Exchange loss-net 1,702                -                    

44,038              25,963              

33 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on savings accounts 5,839                9,790                

Amortization of discounting of Treasury bills 98,781              128,049            

Dividend income 2,715                -                    

15,371              2,013                

122,706            139,852            

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5,425                -                    

Liability no longer payable 4,473                -                    

Reversal for slow moving stores and spares 10.1 269                   454                   

Reversal for slow moving stock in trade 11.1 2,903                4,288                

Exchange gain - net -                    7,683                

Others 23,739              374                   

36,809              12,800              

159,515            152,652            

34 FINANCE COST 

Markup on:

Running finance 34.1 130                   62                     

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25.2 276                   135                   

406                   197                   

Bank charges and commission 626                   290                   

Finance charges on leases 1,547                5,067                

2,579                5,554                

34.1

   Unrealized loss on equity securities

    at fair value through profit and loss

      Realized gain on sale of equity securities

      at fair value through profit and loss

This represents markup charged on running finance facility from Habib Bank Limited. The unavailed

limit of the facility as at year end amounts to Rs. 130 million (2024: Rs. 130 million).
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35 TAXATION

For the year

Current - for the year 35.1 169,623          115,573           

Current - prior year (25,722)           (4,384)             

Deferred (3,092)             (1,762)             

140,809          109,427           

36 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The earnings per share as required under IAS 33: "Earnings per share" is given below:
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholder 315,582          240,665           

13,334            13,334             

23.67              18.05               

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

37 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 456,391          350,092           
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 40,925            47,346             
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 33 (5,425)             -                  

Finance cost 34 2,579              5,554               

Reversal of Provision for slow-moving 

stores and spares 10.1 (269)                (454)                

Reversal of provision for slow-moving 
stock in trade 11.1 (2,903)             (4,288)             

Accrual for compensated absences 6,422              2,337               

Provision of warranty 26 63                   648                  

Provision for employee defined benefit obligations -                  8,569               

Profit on savings accounts and treasury bills 33 (104,620)         (139,853)         

Unrealized (gain)/loss on change in 

fair value of listed equity securities 7,806              -                  

Dividend income (2,715)             -                  

398,254          269,951           

Working capital changes 38.1 (194,603)         132,631           

203,651          402,582           

(Rupee per share)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent

employees. The Fund is maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments

and distribution of income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 

shareholders

2025 2024

Note (Rupees in thousands)
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38.1 Changes in working capital 

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools (4,245)             4,334               

Stock-in-trade (92,141)           97,669             

Trade debts (11,116)           (102,120)         

Loans and advances (41,027)           (23,565)           

Trade deposits and short term prepayments (1,835)             368                  

Other receivables (2,338)             7,163               

(152,702)         (16,151)           

Increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables  (28,829)           118,945           

Sales tax payable (13,072)           29,837             

(194,603)         132,631           

2025 2024

Note (Rupees in thousands)

39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

a)

Chief  Chief

Executive Executive

9,161       17,858  20,728       47,747    7,961       15,458  11,871       35,290    

4,122       8,036    9,268         21,426    3,582       6,956    5,344         15,882    

916          1,786    2,073         4,775      22,932     46,256  22,364       91,552    

4,644       9,018    10,051       23,713    2,412       4,684    3,141         10,237    

1,430       1,131    1,213         3,774      813          1,505    280            2,598      

1,200       2,400    3,202         6,802      1,200       2,400    2,161         5,761      

1,500       3,000    177            4,677      1,558       3,742    99              5,399      

22,973     43,229  46,712       112,914  40,458     81,001  45,260       166,719  

Total 1              2           10              13           1              2           5                8             

b)

c)

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and

Executives of the Company is as follows:

2025 2024

Directors Executives Executives TotalTotal Directors

(Rupees in thousands)

Managerial remuneration

House rent

Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements against fee for attending meetings to six non-executive directors was Rs. 2.920

million (2024: Rs. 2.088 million).

Medical

Leave fare assistance

Staff retirement benefits

Utilities

Bonus

The chief executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with free use of the Company's maintained cars, household

items and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.
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2025 

 

2024 
 

       

(Units in thousands) 
 

          41  CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 
      

 

          
    

 Plant capacity - single shift 
   

850 
 

850     

 
Actual production 

   
366 

 
249 

    

               
41.1  During the year actual production was below the estimated capacity due to lower demand of 

wheel rims. However, actual production has improved as compared to last year. 
    

     

 
          

    
42  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

  

               

 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 

Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and 

monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

    

     

     

 
          

    

 
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial 

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance. No changes 

were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year ended June 30, 

2025 which are summarized below: 
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               (Rupees in thousands)

June 30, 2025

    Lease liabilities 22               5,298                     -            5,298                           -            5,298 

    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                       2,574          2,574 

    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                  259,049     259,049 

    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                     10,900       10,900 

              5,298                     -            5,298                272,523     277,821 

June 30, 2024

    Lease liabilities 22               8,731              5,181        13,912                           -         13,912 

    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                          978             978 

    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                  278,520     278,520 

    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                       9,689          9,689 

              8,731              5,181        13,912                289,188     303,099 

Less than 

one year

One to five 

years
Total

Note

INTEREST / MARK-UP / PROFIT 

BEARING
NON-

INTEREST 

BEARING

TOTAL



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

42.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

2025 2024

Note

27.2        211,432        251,119 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied.

2025 2024 2025 2024

USD to PKR           281.54           283.00          282.30          278.59 

Effect on profit          21,143        (21,143)

Sensitivity analysis

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest

rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax.

Outstanding letters of credit - raw material

Average rate Reporting date rate

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other

variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been higher by the amount

shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on net currency exposure at

reporting date.

(Rupees in thousands)

(Rupees in thousands)

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cashflows will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate

risk and other price risk such as equity price risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets and financial liability will fluctuate

due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables

exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company is not materially exposed to

currency risk as of the reporting date.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk

of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's lease liabilities. The

Company mitigates its risk by maintaining excess funds in saving accounts with floating 

               (Rupees in thousands)

June 30, 2025

    Lease liabilities 22               5,298                     -             5,298                           -            5,298 

    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                       2,574          2,574 

    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                   259,049      259,049 

    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                     10,900        10,900 

              5,298                     -             5,298                 272,523      277,821 

June 30, 2024

    Lease liabilities 22               8,731               5,181         13,912                           -          13,912 

    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                          978             978 

    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                   278,520      278,520 

    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                       9,689          9,689 

              8,731               5,181         13,912                 289,188      303,099 

Less than one 

year

One to five 

years
Total

Note

INTEREST / MARK-UP / PROFIT 

BEARING NON-INTEREST 

BEARING
TOTAL
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46 DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

47

Dividend earned from shariah complaint investment 2,715          -              

Realized gain on sale of investments 15,371        2,013          

Loss on remeasurement of investments at 

fair value through profit or loss (7,806)         -              

Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 2,305,239   2,174,481   

Shariah complaint bank:

Faysal Bank: 9,349          9,368          

48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

49 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

50 GENERAL

50.1 Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousands of rupees, unless stated otherwise.

50.2

51 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                             DIRECTOR

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 08, 2025 by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

The number of employees including contractual employees as at the year end was 216 (2024:

214) and average number of employees during the year was 214 (2024: 220).

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 08, 2025 proposed final cash

dividend of Rs. 7/- per share for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounting to Rs. 93.34 million

for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 04, 2025. 

This is in addition of interim dividend of Rs.6/- per share amounting to Rs. 80.006 million.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the

purpose of comparison and for better presentation.

As per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, Shariah

compliant companies and companies listed on the Islamic Index shall disclose the following:

Certain corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for

the purpose of comparison and better presentation.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2025
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Pattern of Shareholding Report 
As at June 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

RAZAK BENGALI 1                      1,581,971               11.86           

MUHAMMAD IRFAN GHANI 1                      14,842                    0.11             

GUL BANO RAZAK 1                      482,083                  3.62             

KAUSAR IRFAN 1                      1,000,000               7.50             

MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 1                      2,646,410               19.85           

MEHTAB BIBI 1                      437,201                  3.28             

SABA NADEEM 1                      3,000                       0.02             

IRFAN AHMED QURESHI 1                      500                          0.00             

Muhammad Javed 1                      500                          0.00             

SAJID NADRI 1                      500                          0.00             

ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 1                      500                          0.00             

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties -                   -                           -                  

NIT & ICP 1                      1,328,360               9.96             

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions. 5                      4,262                       0.03             

Insurance Companies -                   -                           -               

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 4                      17,723                    0.13             

General Public

a. Local 1,550               3,880,194               29.10           

b. Foreign 174                  112,964                  0.85             

Foreign Companies -                   -                           -               

Others 33                    1,823,240               13.67           

Totals 1,778              13,334,250            100.00           

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage

RAZAK BENGALI 1,581,971               11.86           

MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 2,646,410               19.85           
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 45th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Baluchistan 

Wheels Limitedwill be held on Saturday October 04 2025 at 11 A.M. at Registered Office, Main RCD 

Highway, Hub Chowki, District Lasbella, Baluchistan to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm the minutes of theExtra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 17, 2025. 

 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for 

the year ended June 30, 2025 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and 

Chairman’s Review Report. 

 

In accordance with Section 233 of the Companies Act,2017 and pursuant to S.R.O.389(I)/2023 

dated March 21,2023,the financial statements of the Company can be accessed through the 

following weblink and QR enabled code. 

QR Code Weblink 

  

 

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs.7 (70%) per share for the year 
ended June 30, 2025 as recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in addition to the 
interim cash dividendof Rs.6(60%) per share already paid. 
 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2026 and to fix 
their remuneration. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair. 

  

         BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
 

 
 
Muhammad Asad Saeed 

Karachi: September 12, 2025           Company Secretary 
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Notes: 
 

i) The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from September 26, 2025 to 
October 04, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

 
ii) Physical Transfers received by the Company at the close of business on September 25, 

2025will be treated as being in time for the purpose of attending and voting at the meeting. 
 

iii) A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and 
vote on his/her/its behalf.  A proxy must be a member of the Company. 

 
iv) Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Head Office of the Company duly 

stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.  Proxy Forms (in 
Urdu and English languages) may be downloadedfrom the Company’s 
website:www.bwheels.com 
 

v) Members who have deposited their shares into the Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited (“CDC”) will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

 
A. For Attending the Meeting 

 
a) In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration         
details are uploaded as per CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing  
his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of attending the meeting. 

 
b) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with 
specimen signatures of the nominee shall be produced (if not provided earlier) at the time 
of meeting. 

 
B. For Appointing Proxies 

 
a) In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration      

details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form accordingly. 
 

b) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC 
numbers shall be mentioned on the form. 

 
c) Attested copies of the CNIC or the Passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall  

be furnished with the proxy form. 
 

d) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original Passport. 
 

e) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with 
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The Board of Directors and the Management of the Baluchistan Wheels Limited shall endeavor to

conduct the Business of the Company in the most competitive manner and follow all the Norms and

Laws applicable in the country and be Judicious in the day to day affairs of the Company and adopt

the following significant polices in its true spirit.

Explanation:

Significant policies for this purpose may include:

Risk Management.

Human Resource Management including preparation of a Succession Plan.

Procurement of Goods and Services.

Marketing.

Determination of terms of Credit and Discount to Customers.

Write-off of bad/ doubt full Debts, Advances and Receivables.

Acquisition / Disposal of Fixed Assets.

Investments.

Borrowing of Moneys and the amount in excess of which Borrowings shall be Sanctioned/ Ratified 

by a general meeting of Shareholders.

Donations, Charities, Contributions and other payments of a similar nature including Corporate 

Social Responsibilities.

Determination and Delegation of Financial Powers.

Transactions or Contracts with Associated Companies and Related Parties.

Health, Safety, and Environment.

Strictly avoiding questionable and improper payments or misuse of company’s Funds / Assets 

The Whistle Blower Policy 

CODE OF CONDUCT / STATEMENT OF ETHICS
AND BUSINESS PARACTICES



Disc Wheels for Cars, Vans, 

Pick-ups and 4x4s

Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Ltd.

Indus Motor Co. Ltd.

Lucky Motors Co. Ltd

Disc Wheels for 

Agricultural Tractors

Millat Tractors Ltd.

Al-Ghazi Tractor Ltd.

Ghandhara Industries Ltd.

Fuso Master Motors (Pvt.) Ltd.

Hinopak Motors Ltd.

Ghandhara Automobiles Ltd.

Disc Wheels for 

Commercial Vehicles

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED



Factory & Registered Office Main RCD Highway, Hub 
Chowki, Lasbella Baluchistan Telephone # : (0853)-

363426, 363428 Fax # : (0853)- 35688574
www.bwheels.com

www.bwheels.com


